FY2025
FC 0311 – Supporting Students' SEL, Behavioral & Mental Health, 
and Wellness (competitive)

Questions and Answers (as of 10/18/2024)

Please email questions to achievement@mass.gov with the 
Subject Line: FY2025 FC 0311 Question

Questions and responses will be posted here and updated periodically until the grant due date.

1. Question: My district was a FC 0311 grant recipient in FY24. Are we eligible to apply? 

Answer: Massachusetts public school districts, charter schools, and educational collaboratives are eligible to apply. Previous grantees are eligible to apply.  

2. Question: How much are we eligible to apply for through this grant program?

Answer: Applicants may apply for up to a total of $100,000 for implementation of grant activities described in the RFP. Applicants that choose to participate in the Universal Mental Health Screening Pilot may apply for up to an additional $50,000.  These optional funds are only available for districts piloting the screening for the first time. If your district has previously received funding to participate in the Universal Mental Health Screening Pilot, you are not eligible to apply in FY2025 for the additional $50,000 but may apply for up to a total of $100,000. If you do not remember if your district applied for the universal mental health screening pilot, please email Chris Pond at Christine.a.pond@mass.gov

3. Question: I was looking at the Fund Code 0311 grant this weekend, but I do not see where the actual application for this grant can be found. Am I missing something? Can you share the link for it?
Answer: As stated in the RFP, the FY25 FC 0311 competitive grant will be submitted in DESE’s new GEM$ system. GEM$ is a cloud-based fiscal and program management grant system that will eventually phase out the use of EdGrants. Please see the Submission Instructions section in the RFP for more information. The link is: Grants for Education Management System (GEM$).

4. Question: We would like to apply for the grant. I did go into GEMS and saw the grant but could not access it. Please let me know if there is anything I need to do in order to get into GEMS to access the application.  

Answer: DESE does not assign user access in GEM$. It is the responsibility of your school/district/collaborative’s LEA User Access Administrator (UAA) to set LEA GEM$ user access. Please reference the GEM$ LEA User Roles - Guidance and Forms under DESE Resources on the GEM$ main page. 

5. Question: I cannot find the new application for the 311 grant on the GEM$ grant website. Would this be because we must submit the access request form prior to being able to view this application? Or is it possible I am on the wrong site?

Answer: GEM$ is the correct site to apply for this grant. In order to access the application in GEM$, a user needs to be assigned as a “LEA Grant Writer.” This role is created by the LEA User Access Administrator (UAA) separately for each funding application. An LEA Grant Writer assignment can be held by more than one person. Please contact your district’s UAA and reference Question 4 for more information about the UAA.

6. Question: Are we required to use the MA DESE MTSS self-assessment or can we use a different tool developed by subject matter experts? What are the reporting requirements?

Answer: Yes, districts who are awarded this grant must use the MTSS tool listed in the grant. If a grantee wants to use additional tools to support interventions and it aligns with the priorities of the grant that is also allowed. There are no reporting requirements to DESE as this tool will be used to support grantees in developing their MTSS framework and developing systems. Grantees will use their data collected to inform interventions to support students and policies within their school and/or district.

7. Question: Our district is not able to join the Information Session call on 10/4 about the FC0311 grant. Will you be releasing the questions and answers afterwards?

Answer: Yes, any new questions and answers addressed during the 10/4 session will be added to this document. 

8. Question: If we use part of the grant for staff salaries, do staff need to be part of the project team, or can they also be staff who are directly supporting the team's work? (Example: A family engagement manager will not be part of the team but works closely with families and would be key to involving them in this work.)

Answer: As stated in the FC 0311 RFP, funds must be aligned to the grant purpose and priorities and have reasonable likelihood of being sustained (and/or having impact) beyond the grant period. These funds are not intended to supplant existing salary positions. Funds can be used to pay part-time staff to extend their work and contracted staff who will be directly supporting strategies outlined in the plans, including being a member of the project team. 

9. Question: I understand that we can enter the grant application directly into GEM$ but is there, anywhere, a template document we can follow ahead of time just to organize our own thinking? I don't think I've ever applied for the competitive grant myself.

Answer: There is not a template document for the competitive grant. However, in GEM$, applicants can print the Required Program Information page as a PDF and could use it as a guide for developing response answers.  

10. Question: Our district leaders have expressed interest in the SEL & Mental Health Competitive Grant and have shared ideas for how we might utilize the funding. However, we have not applied in the past due to the competitive nature of the grant. We are wondering if you believe it would be worthwhile for our district to apply in the future, or if the funding is typically limited in a way that might prevent us from qualifying. Any feedback or insight you can offer regarding our chances and the potential benefits of applying would be greatly appreciated.

Answer: All Massachusetts public school districts, charter schools, and educational collaboratives are eligible to apply, including previous and new grantees. While the RFP (on DESE’s Grants Management page) outlines competitive priorities considered as part of the competitive grant review, these priorities do not disqualify districts that do not meet them. 

11. Question: Historically, are all funds claimed and if not, would it be possible that a district that does not necessarily meet or loosely meets the competitive criteria be awarded grant money from this fund code if they are able to highlight a need.

Answer: All Massachusetts public school districts, including charter school districts, and educational collaboratives are eligible to apply.  Not meeting the competitive priorities does not exclude an entity from applying nor from the potential of being awarded a grant. If a applicant is not awarded there will be opportunities to attend any professional development or networking offering.

12. Question: We are an approved special education school. We are reviewing the criteria for the grant eligibility for FY2025: Supporting Students' Social Emotional Learning, Behavioral & Mental Health, and Wellness (SEL & Mental Health) Competitive Grant Fund Code: 0311. It lists "Massachusetts public school districts, charter schools, and educational collaboratives are eligible to apply."  Is this open to approved special education schools as well?

Answer: Approved Special Education Schools are not eligible for this grant.

13. Question: Is the $50,000 for the Universal Mental Health Screening Pilot in addition to the $100,000 as an eligibility amount?

Answer: Applicants may apply for up to a total of $100,000 to address priorities and grant activities described in the RFP. Applicants that choose to participate in the Universal Mental Health Screening Pilot may apply for up to an additional $50,000.  These optional funds are only available for districts piloting the screening for the first time. If your district has previously received funding to participate in the Universal Mental Health Screening Pilot, you are not eligible to apply in FY2025 for the additional $50,000 but may apply for up to a total of $100,000.

14. Question: Do you have a list of districts who have already done the pilot for the Universal Mental Health Screening? 

Answer: There is not a list but applicants can contact the Office of Student and Family Support to see if your district has already piloted a universal mental health screening as part of a previous grant cycle. Please email Chris Pond at christine.a.pond@mass.gov. 

15. Question: If my district was a grantee in the past but we did not opt into the pilot mental health screener, can we apply for the funding this time?

Answer: Yes, any district that has not done the pilot screening previously can apply for the $50,000 funding. 

16. Question: Is there a list of Universal MH Screeners?  How do grantees ensure the screener is approved? Are there specific guidelines about what Universal MH screeners are recommended and different than SEL screeners?

Answer: There is not a list of approved screeners. Awarded grantees who apply for the universal mental health screening pilot will receive technical assistance and professional development to inform selection of an appropriate screener. 

17. Question: It can take some time to identify a developmentally and culturally appropriate screener. Can the funds be used for that exploration?

Answer: The funds cannot be used just to explore screeners. Grantees applying to participate in the pilot are required to implement mental health screening and report specific data related to implementation. Please review the grant for requirements for participating in the universal mental health pilot.  

18. Question: If pilot funds are received through this grant and used for SEL screening, will the continuation grant allow us continued implementation of the SEL screening? If not, what is supposed to happen after the pilot?

Answer: Please note that pilot funds may only be used for Mental Health screening. SEL screening may be proposed as part of the general grant activities. Pending appropriation and meeting grant requirements, grantees may be eligible for a one-year continuation grant in FY2026. Using funding to continue scaling your screener efforts would be an appropriate activity. FY25 grantees would not be eligible for the optional pilot $50,000 in FY2026 (should it still be part of the FY26 state budget line item).  However, using the general grant funds of $100,000 for Mental Health and/or SEL screening activities in FY26 would be an allowable activity. Schools and districts should consider sustainability for funding screening effort and all grant activities.

19. Question: Are we able to use funds to hire community-based counselors to run student support groups?

Answer: Grant funds can be used to hire staff from community-based partners or organizations for the period of the grant (through June 30, 2025) if their role is related to grant priorities. It is important to consider the sustainability of positions in FY2025 if these funds were not available to the grantee in FY2026.

20. Question: Can we hire multiple salary positions?

Answer: Grant funds can be used for salaries if the roles and responsibilities of the staff member(s) are directly related to the grant priorities and activities. It is important to consider the sustainability of positions in FY2025 if these funds were not available to the grantee in FY2026.

21. Question: Can you add hours/days to a staff member who is currently part-time?

Answer: Funds can be used for salaries not currently paid by the district (e.g. a 0.5 FTE for a current part-time salary position) only if the role and responsibilities of the staff member will be directly related to the grant priorities and activities and the staff person is part of the grant team. 

22. Question: Can funding be used to pre-pay services or subscriptions that extend beyond 6/30/2025? if the money ends 6/30/2025 but don’t start until 12/2024, is a one-year (12 month) service / subscription allowed as long as it’s not longer than 12 months but paid for by 6/30?

Answer: Funds can be used for subscriptions that are for the 2024-2025 school year but cannot be used to pre-pay or extend current subscriptions beyond FY2025. 

23. Question: If we have applied regionally in the past in one application, does it make sense to continue in this way, or should we apply as individual districts?
Answer: If elementary school districts feed into one regional middle/high school district and apply together in one application then one district can apply and use a Schedule A for other districts partnering on the proposal. Or, districts can apply separately and indicate how they plan to coordinate/align efforts.

24. Question: Is there a rubric available?

Answer: No, there is no rubric available for applicants. 

25. Question: Will you be able to share a video or guide on how to navigate GEM$?

Answer: GEM$ Training Documentation and Recordings are available on the GEM$ main page in the DESE Resources section. 

26. Question: Is it okay to include a wide variety of different interventions in the same grant application? We have many ideas to strengthen our MTSS, but we worry about having an application that feels too unfocused / disparate.

Answer: A variety of MTSS interventions are permitted to address the needs and system that a district team identifies as part of their comprehensive mental health system. Please refer to the narrative questions to describe your overall grant plans; it should be clear what you are planning on implementing and that it meets the overall grant priorities.

27. Question: Can you clarify if the applicant pool for this grant is comprised of first- time grantees, current grantees, or a mix?  Are you looking to have a certain balance of new grantees and continuation grants?
Answer: This is a competitive grant and any school district; charter school and educational collaborative is eligible to apply. The grant review is based on applicants’ responses to the narrative questions. There are no continuation grants in FY2025.

28. Question: What is the role of that vendor(s), just TA or do they collect our data as well? Will we have access to coaches again?

Answer: The vendors provide professional development and technical assistance, such as coaching, use of the self-assessment tool and administration of screeners, during the grant cycle. If awarded, coaching may be available on a limited basis.

29. Question: Can we use funds to purchase school-wide behavior tracking programs such as Review 360, it is a behavior data tracking system?

Answer: If a behavior data tracking system is a tool that supports the development of building towards a comprehensive mental health system, it is an allowable expense. 

30. Question: Can funds be used for services contracted in the academic year prior to the awarding of the grant?

Answer: No, grant funds can only be used for activities between the grant start date and 6/30/2025.

31. Question: In some grants, the date of LEA Superintendent/Chief Executive approval is the start date.  Is that not the case for this grant?

Answer: For competitive grants, the start date is the date that the Department changes the grant status to “Awarded”.  

32. Question: Does the grant need to be approved by the LEA Superintendent/Chief Executive?

Answer: Yes, competitive grant applications are considered approved and submitted when the grant is moved through the “Superintendent/Chief Executive Approval” step in GEM$.  The due date of the grant is October 21, 2024 at 5:00pm in GEM$.

33. Question: Can funding be used to supplement the salary of the current staff, like school nurse or social worker, who are already working on supporting the BH/MH/SEL intervention?
Answer: Grant funds cannot be used to supplant existing salaries of current staff. Funds may be used to supplement salaries (e.g. increase FTE for activities directly related to the grant priorities).

34. Question: Can I use graphs or bulleted lists for this grant?  Does that mean you just want narrative/ paragraph answers?

Answer: No, graphs and bullets are not preferred in the narrative responses. The FC0311 Required Program Information grant application directions state, “When addressing questions, please do not add charts, lists or bullet responses.” 

35. Question: Are the grants populated in GEM$ for each district? Is there no limit to the narrative for the required program (information) description. 

Answer: LEA Assigned Users in GEM$ for public school districts, charter schools, and educational collaboratives will see a list of all available funding applications for their respective organizations, including FC 0311, when they do a Search in Funding Applications. There is no page limit for the narrative sections in the funding application as this is a web-based grant application platform. Responses should be provided to address each specific question. Please make sure to respond to the question being asked when writing your response.
 
36. Question: Are we required to use the MA DESE MTSS self-assessment or can we use another tool? What are the reporting requirements for this grant?

Answer: Yes, all grantees awarded are required to use DESE’s MTSS self-assessment tool. It is posted in GEM$ in DESE Resources under Miscellaneous Resources-SFS.  Grantees will not be reporting on the self-assessment tool to DESE. There will be an end of year survey administered by DESE’s vendors for this project regarding grantee involvement in professional development activities / technical assistance and overall use of the tool to inform implementation of policies and practices and implementation of activities.

37. Question: Will using the MTSS self-assessment tool help us gain competitive priority in our application? At the same time, we might be asked to complete the self-assessment if we are awarded the grant. I'm wondering whether we should complete it prior to submitting our application, or merely include plans to complete it as part of our application?
Answer: There is no requirement to complete the MTSS self-assessment tool prior to the completion of an application. There is no specific competitive priority for using the MTSS self-assessment tool as it will be required for all grantees. 

38. Question: Can we use grant funds for student transportation to after-school activities?

Answer: This would be allowable if the after-school activities are directly related to the grant priorities that your district is implementing to address the needs of your students and to promote their positive SEL, behavioral and mental health and wellness. 

39. Question: Is there anywhere to access the grant questions in a PDF or Word document?
Question: Is there any kind of application template document you all provide to work off from before we input everything into GEM$?

Answer: Applicants have the option of downloading the Required Program Information page from GEM$ as a PDF to review the questions off-line for planning purposes.

40. Question: I am a new grants manager. While reviewing grant opportunities, I saw that Grant 311 has a deadline of Monday, October 21st. Will there be any extensions to this date?
Answer: This is a competitive grant so there are no extensions.

41. Question: Our district received funding for piloting the UMH Screen a few years ago and continue to implement and grow this practice with the identified cohorts annually.  We are looking to implement a new, third screening tool (we currently do theGAD-7 with Grade 9 and CRAFFT with Grade 10) with a third cohort (SOS with Grade 11) and wondering if I can apply for the additional funds for UMH screening again as we are seeking to implement a new screen with a new cohort of students.

Answer: No, districts are only eligible to apply for the $50,000 to pilot a Universal Mental Health Screener once. Using general 311 grant funds to continue scaling your screener efforts would be an appropriate activity. 

42. Question: I saw on the grant Q&A document that grantees are required to use DESE's MTSS self-assessment tool, but that there is not a reporting requirement related to its use. Could you confirm that my understanding is correct? 
Answer: Yes, as noted in Question 6, there are no reporting requirements to DESE as the MTSS tool will be used to support grantees in developing their MTSS framework and developing systems. Grantees will use their data collected to inform interventions to support students and policies within their school and/or district.

43. Question: We are planning to purchase two vans to transport students to/from activities aligned with the goals of the grant, including workforce development programs (tier 3 support for high needs students in our life skills program), incentive-based trips (tier 2), and group bonding activities for staff and students (tier 2). The vans will also be used for extended school year activities. Could we include the costs of the vans associated with these activities in our budget for this grant? Note that the vans would also be used for our after school athletic program, but we would not include those costs.

Answer: A portion of the costs to purchase school vans that will be used for multiple purposes (e.g. special education, athletics) would be an allowable expense if the applicant’s proposal clearly identifies how the vehicle purchase is directly related to the priorities of the grant.

44. Question: Can we include the costs of using a rideshare app to transport high needs students to/from daytime programming (tier 3)?

Answer: This would be allowable if the activities are directly related to the grant priorities that your district is implementing to address the needs of your students and to promote their positive SEL, behavioral and mental health and wellness. Grant funds cannot be used to supplant existing district costs.  In addition, districts should ensure that transportation options meet all state and federal requirements for pupil transport.

45. Question: We have a high-needs student in foster care in a different town, and we are paying for his daily transportation to and from our school because we are his home school. Could we include the cost of his transportation in the budget we submit for this grant?

Answer: No, this would not be an allowable expense. Grant funds cannot be used to supplant existing district costs.


46. Question: Can a school put links in the application to a District Improvement Plan or other data and would that count in the scoring?
Question: We want to be able to link our strategic plan as well as some other helpful data.   Are we able to embed the links to documents as part of our application?  Is that acceptable or not?

Answer: Additional documents provided as links will not be considered as part of the competitive review process and scoring. Applicants can reference plans and highlight sections that are most important in the narrative response. 

47. Question: Our School Districts are composed of 5 schools all with their own local budgets and school committees.  When completing grants that have separate allocations for each of the schools (Districts) we sometimes do a schedule A to consolidate the funds. One of the schools/districts intends to apply for the grant. My question is: Does a Schedule A need to be completed? If so, in what circumstances?
Answer: A Schedule A is only needed if multiple districts that are part of or feed into the regional districts intend to apply together.  If only one of the districts is planning to apply, it can do so and does not need to include a Schedule A.
